
Page 1 of 6 
 

For a more detailed account of the Planning Board Meeting please review the Acton Public Access Television recording for 
this meetings date at http://www.actonmaine.org/ 

 

Town of Acton, Maine 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes 

Date: October 02, 2025 

 

Members Present: 

Christopher Whitman (Chairman), Gavin Maloney (Vice-Chairman), John Qua, Andrew Johnson, 

Roger Perreault 

Also Present: 

Jason Sevigny (Code Enforcement Officer), David Riley (Land Use Assistant), Ben Smith (NorthStar 

Planning), Jennifer Roux (Acton Town Administrator, Greg Martinez (Owner of Iron Tails Saloon), 

Kailey Gullikson (Sebago Technics), William Wawrzeniak, Anita Harris 

Absent:  

Adam Brock, Tucker Brown 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Designate Alternates:  

Christopher Whitman designates Roger Perreault as an alternate. 

 

Approval of Minutes:  

Gavin Maloney – “I’ll make a Motion we accept the minutes from September 18th as corrected.” 

Roger Perreault – “Second that.” Motion Passed 3 – 0. (Christopher Whitman & John Qua 

abstaining as they were not present September 18th.) 

 

  
Old Business: 

• None 
 

 



Page 2 of 6 
 

For a more detailed account of the Planning Board Meeting please review the Acton Public Access Television recording for 
this meetings date at http://www.actonmaine.org/ 

 

 

New Business:   

  

• Apple Valley Development, LLC. 559 Route 109. Tax Map 148; Lot 001. Application for 

Site Plan Review & Amendment of existing Conditional Use.  

 
Kailey Gullikson from Sebago Technics introduced herself to the Planning Board as the Civil 

Engineer representing Greg Martinez from Iron Tails. Kailey began by presenting the proposed 
conversion of the existing warehouse space in the rear of the Iron Tails building into 4 
commercial units, each being about 800 sq. ft. Included in the Site Plan review proposal would 
be an expansion of the parking lot and the addition of proposed storm water management 
facilities. Kailey stated that she is present tonight only to introduce the project and get any 
potential feedback from the Planning Board on moving forward.  

Board member John Qua inquired about a potential procedural issue. John stated that the 
board has two things before them, an amendment to a Conditional Use and an application for 
Site Plan review. John questioned if the Site Plan review can be looked at prior to approving the 
Conditional Use Amendment. Ben Smith from North Star Planning stated that these types of 
applications are often reviewed concurrently but it should be made clear to the applicant that if 
the Conditional Use is not approved it would mean those portions of the Site Plan Review 
would also not be approved. Ben also stated that while they may be able to expand their 
parking lot but if the Conditional Use was not approved the operations of Iron Tails Saloon 
would have to continue under the current Conditions. Ben continued by suggesting that more 
detail around the existing Conditional Use and what exactly the applicant is looking to change 
should be provided.  

Kailey explained to the Board that the parking lot is only part of the site plan review and not 
Conditional Use. John Qua mentioned that if the Conditional Use is not approved and the 
request in increase from 300 to 600 occupants is not allowed, then there wouldn’t be a need 
for the additional parking. Greg Martinez joined Kailey at the podium and stated that he does 
have large events outside on occasion and he has to rely on the Fairgrounds next door for extra 
parking and that may not always be available. John Qua asked how many people attend the 
large events. Greg stated that there were around 800 people at his last event. John asked if he 
had gotten mass gathering permits from the select board. Greg stated that he was recently told 
by the select board to come to the Planning Board to have conditions amended because the 
selectboard felt they shouldn’t be granting mass gathering permits for more occupants than 
were allowed by the Conditional Use. Greg and the Planning Board continued their round table 
discussions around the commercial spaces he would like to include in the existing warehouse 
area. John Qua stated that if Greg intended to have the commercial units open year round he 
would need to have the Site Plan amended to include a plan for snow plowing. 

John Qua continued the discussion by reviewing the approved plan for Iron Tails and stated 
that on the signed plan outdoor entertainment was limited to Saturdays and Sundays between 



Page 3 of 6 
 

For a more detailed account of the Planning Board Meeting please review the Acton Public Access Television recording for 
this meetings date at http://www.actonmaine.org/ 

 

1:00pm and 5:00pm, and during Bike Week it was also allowed Tuesday through Friday from 
12:00pm to 4:00pm. John asked Greg if these hours were being followed. Greg stated that they 
were and if he was going to have an event with music outside of those hours, he applied for a 
mass gathering permit from the Select Board. John stated that it didn’t make sense to him that 
the Select Board would permit music outside of what was approved, especially if the event 
wasn’t exceeding the number of people allowed. Greg stated that he went for the mass 
gathering permit as he thought it dealt with the noise issue. Chris Whitman asked if Greg had 
ever done a professional noise study. Chris referred to an old set of Planning Board minutes 
from May 10, 2021 where Greg had mentioned he would be having a study done. Greg stated 
that he spoke with a noise engineer who indicated to him that he may remain within the noise 
ordinance during the day but at night he couldn’t guarantee that he would remain within the 
noise levels. Greg said the engineer told him it had something to do with the atmospheric 
pressure at night. 

Board member Gavin Maloney asked John if he thought the Board should look at the 
parking and Site Plan review first. John stated he thought the Board should look at the 
Conditional Use first because if the Board doesn’t approve going from 300 to 600 people the 
extra parking would be way over kill for three seasonal and one year-round business. Greg 
stated that the 300 was assigned by the State Fire Marshalls Office for inside the building. He 
continued to say that there is no state standard for people allowed outside his building and he 
would like to increase the number because he would like to have events on a sunny day where 
he would potentially be over 300 people. Greg finished by saying the reason he is before the 
Planning Board is because of growth and he is in business to grow and accommodate his 
customers. 

Jason Sevigny addressed the Chairman and introduced the Town Administrator Jennifer 
Roux to explain why Greg was informed to come to the Planning Board to adjust his number of 
people allowed instead of obtaining mass gathering permits. Jennifer stated that there's been 
some miscommunication, which she feels like has been cleared up well in the last year or so, 
and the board has taken a stance to have Greg come to the planning board and try to have it 
cleared up. The mass gathering ordinance the town of Acton has is extremely old. It's been last 
updated in 1981. It talks about any event over 250 people. She continued by stating the 
planning board set the guidelines for Iron Tails and the Board of Selectmen can't supersede 
that. They can't with a mass gathering permit trump the amount of people that the planning 
board allows. There's nothing in the mass gathering that allows that. There's been some 
miscommunication in the last couple of years, where Greg was applying for mass gathering 
permits but the board has no authority to go higher than the 300 people that the Planning 
Board has set and the hours that the Board has set. So, this year when he came in for mass 
gathering, we reviewed his permit through the planning board and we reviewed what the mass 
gathering ordinance says, and Greg was told to go back before the planning board because if he 
wants to change the hours or he wants to change the amount of people that has to be set 
through Planning Board conditions. That's where it was left. She finished by stating the Select 
Board does not issue mass gathering permits to somebody that has conditions set by a planning 



Page 4 of 6 
 

For a more detailed account of the Planning Board Meeting please review the Acton Public Access Television recording for 
this meetings date at http://www.actonmaine.org/ 

 

board. These are designed for weddings or one-time car shows or those types of things. You set 
his regulations.  

Greg and the Planning Board continued their discussions around the number of occupants 
that could be allowed. Greg stated that he is looking to grow as a business because if a business 
doesn’t grow than that business is done. Christopher Whitman asked Greg what would be done 
if there were more than 300 people outside and it started to rain and everyone flocks inside it 
would become a safety concern. Greg detailed how he felt he should be allowed to have more 
than 300 people inside but he stated that was another battle for him to deal with through the 
State Fire Marshall’s Office. Board member Andrew Johnson stated that he by no means wants 
to stand in the way of growth but safety would be his main concern as well. He continued by 
saying he would like to hear more information from the professionals who determine how 
many people can be allowed inside so the Board isn’t just randomly picking numbers out of a 
hat. The Board also identified that back in 2022 the hours for music were set to address the 
noise concern brought up at the Public Hearing. John Qua stated that Greg originally was 
looking for music until 10:00pm but the Board thought it was a bit much and it was talked 
through and brought back to 5. He also mentioned that back in 2022 the wall that was built and 
the trees behind were taken into consideration as a buffer for the noise but now the expansion 
of the parking lot would have those trees removed. John finished by saying it’s not just safety 
and size but also the good neighbor standards.  

Ben Smith from NorthStar Planning stated that the Board is appropriate in asking the 
questions they are but will also have to review wastewater capacity, traffic flow at the 
intersections, stormwater runoff and each of these things will need to be addressed as well. 
John Qua stated that he agreed but it brings him back to the original procedural question of 
how the Board addresses the situation where if the increase from 300 to 600 people is not 
approved, the need of the 14 spots for the 4 businesses and the 100 more for overflow of the 
saloon is not needed. Ben stated that this is why he feels the reviews need to be done 
concurrently.  

Kailey addressed the Board by saying the Site Plan does indicate that the commercial units 
would require 25 additional parking spaces and about 75 are being added but the applicant can 
add parking spaces above what is required. She stated that the Planning Board would need to 
approve them but there can be parking added. Gavin Maloney stated that he thought the 
Board has a lot of information to review and there isn’t much further to get with conversations 
and it would be useful for the Board to take some time with the documents. Board member 
Andrew Johnson agreed with Gavin and asked if it could be explained simply exactly what is 
being looked for. Kailey stated that the Site Plan review is for the expansion of the 4 
commercial units, gravel parking lot expansion in the rear which includes 75 passenger vehicle 
spaces and 30 motorcycle spaces, stormwater management and additional landscaping. Greg 
stated that is Sebago Technics piece and his piece is coming up to speed with the business he is 
doing currently and proposing an amendment to the Conditions. Greg said the current 
Conditions limit him to 5pm on the weekend and bike week and he is looking to have shows in 
the evenings over the course of the season that would end at 10:00pm somewhere in the 



Page 5 of 6 
 

For a more detailed account of the Planning Board Meeting please review the Acton Public Access Television recording for 
this meetings date at http://www.actonmaine.org/ 

 

amount of 5 to 8 shows depending on what comes “down the pipe” to him. Andrew Johnson 
stated that Greg is looking to change the music hours to 10:00pm. Greg said yes and that he 
would agree to the number of shows he could have throughout the summer that would happen 
after what he is already allowed until 5:00pm. Gavin Maloney stated that Greg is also looking to 
increase the capacity from 300 people to 600 people. Gavin asked Greg if he is looking to 
increase to 600 people every day. Greg explained that mostly just at the weekends but yes as 
he doesn’t want to limit himself if something comes up. Greg continued by saying he doesn’t 
have a problem with limiting the number of shows he has outdoors at night and down the road 
if he is able to build a pavilion and have new ways to control the noise, he could revisit the 
number of shows he’s allowed to have then.  

Jason asked the Board if there were any other questions about the engineering for the Site 
Plan for Kailey while she was present. John Qua stated he mentioned adding snow plowing and 
storage to the plan, and there will be some discussion on storm water runoff on the plan. John 
stated he would like to specifically talk about the increase in storm water runoff. Kailey 
explained the increase in Storm water runoff as follows, “So the soils out here are very fast 
draining. They're gravely soils. When we model these sites, we take an existing conditions plan, 
we model what it does before and then we model what it does after. And this model comes up 
with a theoretical number. A very perfect number, with this being a 12-acre site and the gravels 
being so well draining, that 0.01 isn't going to reach the property line, is what we're saying 
because of how well the gravel soils are. The problem with the model is that because we are 
adding what we call impervious area of the gravel parking lot, that's an increase in the number. 
The problem is the model doesn't really understand that because the gravel soils are so well 
draining, that it's just it's seeing that there's an increase in the number from the pre-
development plan to the post-development plan and it's saying ‘oh it's going up’ and no matter 
what you do you are going to have a really hard time solving that. So we added a huge amount 
of storage. This plan doesn’t actually even require storm water management for treatment. 
We're adding the treatment, but it's really there for detention. So, all of the drainage and 
drainage actually from the existing facility that didn't require anything, is going to those two 
bases. So, we're doing that in an effort to bring down those numbers. And that 0.01 is just it's 
going to be very hard to get rid of that 0.01 and in our professional opinion that 0.01 is kind of 
non-existent.” John Qua asked what they would have to do to get rid of that 0.01. Kailey said 
she would have to look at the model again because she wasn’t certain. John Qua stated that 
would be a question he would ask. 

John Qua then asked if the 50% lot coverage is based on the whole 12 acres or just the 
commercial area that they’re located in. Kailey stated they viewed it as looking at the coverage 
for the whole parcel instead of zoning districts. John Qua agreed and thought that was correct 
but wanted to ask. Ben Smith stated as one final thing to consider, the portable toilets that 
have been utilized for those one off events over the summers have been adequate, but if the 
day to day capacity is increased for the proposed change, he would need to review the 
standards to determine if portable toilets are an acceptable way to have a facility operate on a 
normal day to day capacity. John Qua stated that he didn’t see anything covering the present 



Page 6 of 6 
 

For a more detailed account of the Planning Board Meeting please review the Acton Public Access Television recording for 
this meetings date at http://www.actonmaine.org/ 

 

septic capacity. Kailey stated that they could add that to the plans. John stated there was also a 
waiver included and Kailey stated that the waiver was a mistake and there was not a waiver 
being asked for in relation to the well. It was determined that the applicant would return to the 
Planning Board in November with an updated plan and information. Jason also stated he would 
have Ben provide a planner memo when the new paperwork is submitted.    

    
      

Round Table Discussion: 
 
 The remainder of the meeting revolved around the work NorthStar Planning has done with 
recodifying the Acton Zoning Ordinance and the draft proposal provided to the Planning Board 
from NorthStar Planning. For a detailed description of the discussion please refer to the video 
recording of the October 2, 2025 meeting. There is a link to the video recording located on the 
Town of Acton website. 
 
Pending Projects: 
 

• H. A. Mapes & Watson/NH LLC. Route 109. Tax Map 241; Lot 006-001 & Tax Map 241; 

Lot 006-005. Sketch Plan Review for Mapes Storage and Residential Unit Development. 

 

• Tatnall, Sara. 443 Peck Road. Map 238; Lot 009. Sketch Plan Review Application for 
Subdivision.   

 

 
Roger Perreault – “Mr. Chair, I make a Motion that we adjourn.”  
 
John Qua – “I’ll Second.” Motion Passed 5 – 0. 


